
 

 
 

 

INFORMATION DIGEST DOCUMENT PACK 
 

Date: 
 

Friday, 16 December 2022 

 
PART 1 

1. Affordable Housing Update (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

 
 

 

Information  
Digest 

 
 
 

To:  Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

Date: 16 December 2022 
 
 

Affordable Housing Update 
 
Nick Lamb  
Interim Head of Regeneration  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



  

 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 This report provides an overview of current affordable housing delivery, and 
outlines actions to increase supply as agreed in the recently approved 

Housing Delivery Programme (Cabinet March 2022).  It also provides an 
update for Transformation Board project PLA.8: Develop a strategy for further 
development of affordable and specialist housing. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 Members are requested to note the contents of this report. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 Evidence from the SHMA suggests a net annual need of between  224 - 432 
affordable dwellings per annum (based  on the housing register approach 

calculation).  Over the last four financial years 2018/19 to 2021/22 there have 
been a total of 109 affordable homes delivered. 

 

3.2 The refreshed Housing Delivery programme was approved by Members in 
March 2022 to drive forward delivery of new homes in response to historic low 

levels of delivery achieved across the district.  
 
3.3 The council works closely with registered providers to drive forward the 

delivery of new homes through two mechanisms. 
  

 With Homes England grant given to a registered provider. 

 Negotiation of a section 106 agreement as part of the planning process. 

 
3.4  Recent low levels of open market development across the District has stifled 

the delivery of new affordable homes, as  a constrained number of affordable 

homes have been secured through the planning process.  
 

3.5 In order to drive forward delivery, Theme 4, of the Housing Delivery 
Programme focuses on affordable housing. The actions below, taken together, 
outline the Council’s strategy for further development of affordable and 

specialist housing. 
 

 Continue to strengthen our relationship with registered providers and 
understand barriers and constraints to delivery.  

 Work with registered providers to identify suitable sites for 100% affordable 
housing and pursue funding bids with Homes England.  

 Work with registered providers to understand recent changes to the shared 

ownership model lease and the implications this may have on registered 
providers’ finances and ability to deliver.  

 Seek to ensure that affordable housing delivered through developer 
contributions, or grant funded, will meet the needs and aspirations of the 

current and future population.  

Page 4



  

 Following the introduction of First Homes, evaluate the impact  on the 
Council’s ability to meet the needs of households on the housing register.  

 Commission consultants to prepare a Developer Contributions SPD, which 

will  provide further guidance to developers through the planning process.   
 

3.6 The council is reliant on registered providers to deliver new affordable homes 
following the successful Ascent programme which utilised council owned land 
and funding.  A total of 277 homes of which 259 were affordable were built by 

the Ascent programme. Following its completion the council needed to look for 
new ways to drive forward affordable housing delivery which lead to the 

introduction of the Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme in 2018.  
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 The delivery of affordable and specialist housing will contribute to the delivery 

of housing growth anticipated in the Local Plan and therefore has links to the 
following aims in the Corporate Plan: 

 

 Aim One: help create safer and healthier environments for our communities 
to live and work. 

o Increased supply of good quality affordable homes. 

 Aim Two: effective use of resources and provide value for money. 

 Aim Three: help create a strong economy by supporting further 
regeneration of towns and villages. 

 Aim Four: protect and improve the environment. 

 
 
5. Detail 
 

Background 
 
Establishing the Housing Need 

 
5.1 Establishing the needs for affordable housing across the District relies mainly 

on two data sources, the housing register (known as Home Options) and the 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA).  

 

5.2 As of 31st March 2022, there are 727 households registered on Home Options 
actively seeking accommodation. Applicants are given a priority banding A-D 

based on their housing need. Of the 727 currently registered, households are 
broken down on the register as follows;  

 

5.3   
 A (emergency/ top priority) = 17 households 

 B (urgent need) = 127 households 
 C (identified housing need) = 369 households 
 D (non-priority housing) = 214 

 
5.4  The accommodation requirements of the households registered on Home 

Options are as follows; 
   

Page 5



  

Bedroom requirement Number of 

households 

Percentage  

1 bed accommodation  215 30% 

1 bed accommodation (household 
aged 60+ would be eligible for 

older persons accommodation )  

109 15% 

2 bed accommodation  212 29% 

3 bed accommodation  136 19% 

4 bed accommodation  44 6% 

5 bed accommodation  10 1% 

6 bed accommodation  1 Less than 1% 

Total  727  

 
5.5  Currently 73% of households registered on Home Options require either 1 bed 

or 2 bed accommodation.  
 

5.6 The Council undertook a Strategic Housing Market Assessment in 2017,as 
part of the Local Plan evidence base to consider housing need across the 
district and the Objectively Assessed Need (ONA). Evidence from the SHMA, 

also highlighted the need for smaller dwellings. The report suggested that this 
was due to the high number of single and couple households residing in the 

area. The SHMA suggests, that this will increase significantly by the end of the 
Local Plan period. The SMHA recommended the following property size and 
type for both market and affordable housing.  

 

 Percentage of dwellings 

1 bed flat 
2 bed flat/ house/ bungalow 

60% 

3 bed house/ bungalow 

4 bed house 

40% 

 
5.7 Officers will consider both these sources of information when considering 

affordable housing opportunities. It is possible to interrogate and drill down into 
the Home Options data to a more localised town or  village level, to ensure the 
appropriate property mix which most closely meets the housing needs of that 

community and settlement is secured.  
 

5.8 The SHMA also identified a significant and growing older person population 
and suggests there is already a mismatch between demand and supply for 
housing that specifically meets the needs of older people.  However, more 

recent data from Home Options does not support the need for providing 
additional older persons accommodation, as only 15% of those registered are 

aged 60+.   
 
5.9 Whilst data from Home Options gives us a snap short view of demand, this 

data should not be viewed in isolation.  Many external  factors can influence  
data held on the register and it must be noted that Home Options provides an 

indication of those requiring affordable housing older persons provision and 
does not include those whose needs will be met on the open market.  

 

Page 6



  

5.10 Both the SHMA and housing register demonstrate a significant need for 
affordable housing across the district. Evidence from the SHMA suggests an 
net annual need of between  224 - 432 affordable dwellings per annum (for the 

Local Plan period) based on the housing register approach calculation.  
 
Methods for delivering affordable housing 
 

5.11 In order to try and meet the identified need, affordable housing is 

predominately delivered by one of two methods. 
  

 With Homes England grant given to a registered provider 

 Negotiation of a section 106 agreement as part of the planning process. 
 

5.12 Policy H3 of the adopted Local Plan  requires that residential developments of 
10 dwellings or more shall provide a 33% affordable housing contribution with 

a 60% rented, 40% shared ownership split.  The Local Plan does acknowledge 
potential viability issues and where justified, lower levels of provision may be 
secured.  

 
5.13 There have been instances on sites across the Staffordshire Moorlands where 

a reduced contribution, or no affordable housing, has been secured, in these 
instances the delivery of 100% affordable housing sites becomes more vital as 
a guaranteed supply of new affordable homes.  

 
5.14 The Council has historically suffered from low levels of development for many 

years, and this has further impacted on the number of affordable homes 
delivered. The table below provides completions data over the last four years. 

 

  

Year Affordable homes 
delivered (includes 

new build and 
acquisitions) 

2018/19 46 

2019/20 18  

2021/21 25 

2021/22 20 

Total  109 

 

5.15  Despite low levels of overall development, there have been a number of recent 
successes.  

 

 Ascent programme delivered 277 new homes, of which 259 were affordable.  

 Wrekin Housing Trust successfully secured Homes England grant in 2016/17 
to deliver 43 rented units at Hurst Yard, Cheadle.  

 Peak District Rural Housing Association have recently completed 6 dwellings 

on a rural exception site at Wetley Rocks  

 Epic Housing, have converted 11 empties properties, utilising the purchase 

and repair grant available from Homes England.    
 

 

Page 7



  

Council’s role in driving forward delivery  
 

5.16  As a result of the successful Ascent scheme, which utilised council owned 

land and funding, there is limited council land remaining which could be 
developed for affordable housing.  

 
5.17 In order to proactively drive forward the delivery of both market and affordable 

housing the Council has recently approved the refreshed Housing Delivery 

Programme. Theme 4 of this programme addresses Affordable Homes and 
sets outs the following actions: 

 

 Continue to strengthen our relationship with registered providers and 
understand barriers and constraints to delivery.  

 Work with registered providers to identify suitable sites for 100% affordable 
housing and pursue funding bids with Homes England.  

 Work with registered providers to understand recent changes to the shared 
ownership model lease and the implications this may have on registered 

providers’ finances and ability to deliver.  

 Seek to ensure that affordable housing delivered through developer 
contributions, or grant funded, will meet the needs and aspirations of the 

current and future population.  

 Following the introduction of First Homes, evaluate the impact  on the 

Council’s ability to meet the needs of households on the housing register.  

 Commission consultants to prepare a Developer Contributions SPD, which 

will  provide further guidance to developers through the planning process.   
 

Delivery pipeline  

 
5.18 Following the implementation of the Housing Delivery Programme, officers will  

continue to work with registered providers to maximise the opportunities to 
deliver new affordable homes both through the planning process and in 
partnership with Homes England. 

 
5.19 Several schemes have been successful in securing Homes England 

Affordable Homes Programme funding and are currently subject to  pending 
planning applications or pre-app applications. 

 

 Blythe Vale former police station site – proposal is to deliver 10 
apartments in partnership with aspire Housing. Council is contributing 

£68,000 towards the acquisition of the land.  

 Compton Mill, Leek- Housing 21 are proposing to deliver 57 apartments 
of accommodation for older people (60+). Site was granted in principle 

approval in April 2022, subject to the completion of a S106 agreement.  
 
Impacts on future delivery 
 
First Homes  

5.20 A ministerial statement was published on 24th May 2021 introducing 
substantial changes to current planning policy. In line with the government’s 

commitment to support people into home ownership, planning authorities are 

Page 8



  

required to secure First Homes as part of affordable housing S106 
contributions going forward. 

 

5.21 The national standards for a First Home are outlined below, but local 
authorities do have the discretion to increase the discount amount and apply a 

local connection policy if evidence supports this.  

a) a First Home must be discounted by a minimum of 30% against the market value; 

b) after the discount has been applied, the first sale must be at a price no higher than 
£250,000 and, 

c) the home is sold to a person who meets the First Homes eligibility criteria,  

5.22 The national eligibility criteria is as follows: 

 A purchaser (or, if a joint purchase, all the purchasers) of a First Home 
should be a first-time buyer as defined in paragraph 6 of schedule 6ZA of 
the Finance Act 2003 for the purposes of Stamp Duty Relief for first-time 

buyers. 

 Purchasers of First Homes, whether individuals, couples or group 

purchasers, should have a combined annual household income not 
exceeding £80,000 (or £90,000 in Greater London) in the tax year 

immediately preceding the year of purchase. 

 A purchaser of a First Home should have a mortgage to fund a minimum of 
50% of the discounted purchase price. 

5.23    A Developer Contributions SPD is currently being prepared on behalf of the 

Council by Capita.  The planning document will set out guidance on how the 
First Homes policy will be applied locally.  

 
Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill   
 

5.24 The government is seeking to make changes to the way affordable housing is 
secured through the introduction of the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill, 

which incorporates elements of the Planning for the Future White Paper. The 
bill sets out the framework for a new Infrastructure Levy, which will largely 
replace the current system of obtaining developer contributions for 

infrastructure and affordable housing. The new levy will be charged on the 
value of property when it is sold and applied above a minimum threshold, with 

levy rates and thresholds being set locally by planning authorities. Much of the 
detail is yet to be confirmed in subsequent regulations but the bill notes the 
following specific actions relating to affordable housing: 

 

 Introduce a new ‘right to require’ to remove the role of negotiation in 
determining levels of onsite affordable housing. This rebalances the 

inequality between developers and local authorities by allowing local 
authorities to determine the portion of the levy they receive in-kind as 
onsite affordable homes. 

 Consider how the Levy should be applied to registered provider-led 
schemes. 

Page 9



  

 Detail the retained role for section 106 agreements to support delivery 
of the largest sites. In these instances, infrastructure will be able to be 
provided in-kind and negotiated, but with the guarantee that the value of 

what is agreed will be no less than will be paid through the Levy. 

 Introduce the Levy through a ‘test and learn’ approach. This means it 

will be rolled out nationally over several years, allowing for careful 
monitoring and evaluation, in order to design the most effective system 
possible. 

5.25 Registered Providers have voiced concerns about the introduction of the levy 
and question the mechanism for securing affordable housing if it is not 
chargeable until a development is sold. In response the government have 

assured that the level of affordable housing currently gained through 
developer contributions will be the same or higher under the levy and that 

concerns will be fully addressed through regulations accompanying the bill.  
 
 

Neil Rodgers 
Executive Director (Place) 

 

 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 
Nick Lamb – Interim Head of Regeneration 
nick.lamb@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

  

 

 

Page 10


	Agenda
	1 Affordable Housing Update

